



#### **Durham Catholic District School Board**

# Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC)

**Terms of Reference** 

## Durham Catholic District School Board MISSION STATEMENT

We are called to celebrate and nurture the God-given talents of each student as we serve with excellence in the light of Christ.

**We believe** that all students can learn and achieve given the proper time and supports, and that all teachers can teach to high standards given the right conditions and assistance.

**We believe** that setting high expectations for achievement, holding students to rigorous performance standards and early intervention are essential to student success

**We believe** that teachers need to be able to articulate what they do and why they teach the way they do, reflective of Gospel values and the Catholic Graduate Expectations

**We believe** that every child is made in the image and likeness of God and that his or her dignity and worth must be respected and valued.

**We believe** that every child can learn and that as Catholic educators, we are called to a vocation which values each child's successes, based on his or her level of understanding.

**We believe** that every child is a unique gift from God and has his or her own way of learning. As Catholic educators, we must plan for diversity and give students tasks that respect their abilities.

**We believe** that our Catholic learning communities are places of conversation and support, where educators can reach out to others in the community for ideas and assistance in order to create a learning environment that best supports all students, including students with special needs

**We believe** that all our students have the right to be educated in the manner that best suits them. We therefore understand the importance of universal design and differentiated instruction in order to ensure that our classrooms and other learning environments are as usable as possible to students, regardless of their age, ability or situation.

**We believe** that we are all lifelong learners and that as Catholic educators we are called to continue to develop our pedagogy so that our instruction and professional judgment are supported by good research.

**We believe** that as educators, we have the advantage of knowing the child and the ability to provide valuable feedback in order to support his or her programming and assessment.

#### **DCDSB Special Education Advisory Committee Mandate**

Regulation 464/97 made under the *Education Act* R.S.O. 1990 c E. 2 sets out the requirements that govern Special Education Advisory Committees of school authorities and district boards of education in the province of Ontario.

Reg. 464/97 provides that Special Education Advisory Committees *may*:

 make recommendations to the Board in respect of any matter affecting the establishment, development and delivery of special education programs and services for exceptional pupils of the Board.

and that the Special Education Advisory Committee shall be given the opportunity to:

- participate in the Board's annual review of the Special Education Plan;
- participate in the Board's annual budget process as it relates to special education; and
- review the financial statements of the Board as they relate to special education.

Regulation 464/97 is reproduced at Appendix 1, and can be viewed at: https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/970464

#### **Table of Contents**

Article 1	MEMBERSHIP	1
1.1	Membership Composition	1
1.2	Local Association Representatives – Voting and Alternate	1
1.3	Trustees	2
1.4	Community Representative	3
1.5	Board Personnel	3
Article 2	NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT	
	Term	
2.2	Request for Nominations	3
2.3	Appointment	.4
2.4	Vacancies	.4
		_
Article 3	MEETINGS	
	Election of the Chair and Vice-Chair	
	Open Meetings	
	Meeting Times	
	SEAC Agendas	
	Cancellation	
	Quorum	
	Attendance at Meetings	
3.8	Accessibility	6
3.9	Meeting Procedures	6
3.10	Maximum Length of Meeting	6
3.11	. Voting	7
3.12	! Meeting Norms	7
Article 4	RESPONSIBILITY OF MEMBERS	
	Code of Conduct	
	Local Association Communication	
4.3	Recommendations to the Board	
	Review of Special Education Plan	
4.5	Budget and Financial Statement Review	9

#### Appendix

Appendix 1 Ontario Regulation 464/97 Special Education Advisory Committees

Appendix 2 SEAC Association Report Form

Appendix 3 SEAC Annual Calendar

#### **DCDSB Special Education Advisory Committee Terms of Reference**

#### ARTICLE 1 MEMBERSHIP

#### 1.1 Membership Composition

Membership in the Durham Catholic District School Board (the "Board") Special Education Advisory Committee ("SEAC") shall be comprised of up to twelve (12) Local Association Voting Representatives, twelve (12) Local Association Alternate Representatives, two (2) Voting Trustee Representatives, one (1) Alternate Trustee Representative, and one (1) Voting Community Representative, as further described below.

Nominees are proposed to the Board of Trustees for appointment to SEAC pursuant to the nomination and appointment process defined in Article 2 herein.

An individual is eligible to be appointed by the Board of Trustees as a SEAC member if he or she:

- a) is qualified to vote for members of the Durham Catholic District School Board in a municipal election;
- b) is a resident within the jurisdiction of the Board;
- c) is not an employee of the Board; and
- d) has not been convicted of an indictable offence.

#### <u>1.2</u> <u>Local Association Representatives – Voting and Alternate</u>

A "Local Association" is defined by Regulation 464/97 and in this Procedure as an organization which:

- a) operates locally within the school board jurisdiction;
- b) is affiliated with an incorporated organization what works on behalf of one or exceptional students throughout Ontario; and
- c) is not an Association or organization of professional educators, either locally or provincially.

Reg. 464/97 allows up to twelve (12) Local Associations to nominate SEAC representatives for Board appointment.

The Durham Catholic District School Board recognizes the right of each of the following Local Associations to nominate one Voting Representative and one Alternate Representative for appointment as a member of SEAC:

- 1. Autism Ontario Durham Region;
- Community Living Durham North;
- Cystic Fibrosis Canada Durham Chapter;
- 4. Durham Down Syndrome Association;
- Grandview Children's Centre;

- 6. Kinark Child & Family Services;
- 7. Learning Disabilities Association Durham;
- 8. Resources for Exceptional Children and Youth Durham Region;
- 9. Views for the Visually Impaired;
- 10. VOICE for the Hearing Impaired; and
- 11. Participation House.

The Board shall invite Local Associations to nominate Representatives who will bring to SEAC:

- a commitment to assist the Board in meeting the needs of all students with exceptionalities;
- the perspective and concerns of parents of children with exceptionalities;
- the perspective and expertise of their Local Association and the provincial organization with which their Local Association is affiliated.

The Local Association Voting Representative is responsible for maintaining regular communication and providing information to the Alternate Representative.

Voting Representatives are encouraged to attend meetings as often as possible. When unable to attend, it is the Voting Representative's responsibility to notify the Alternate Representative of his or her anticipated absence.

The role of Alternate Representative is to attend SEAC meetings as a voting member in the event that the Voting Representative is unable to attend. An Alternate Representative can also assist the Voting Representative in preparing for meetings and connecting with the Local and provincial Associations. Alternate Representatives are encouraged to attend every SEAC meeting.

All communications and meeting resources will be provided electronically to both the Voting and the Alternate Representative members.

#### 1.3 Trustees

Trustee Representatives are in a unique position to act as a liaison between the Board of Trustees, SEAC, and other committees of the Board. Trustees can assist SEAC in its work by contributing information about Board processes and priorities and can share SEAC concerns with other Trustees. SEAC can in turn help Trustees to stay well-informed and aware of the current issues facing the Board's special education community.

If both Trustee Voting Representatives are unable to attend, they will ensure that the Alternate Trustee is aware of their anticipated absence.

All Board Trustees are invited to attend SEAC meetings when important presentations or discussions are scheduled to take place, and to attend SEAC sponsored events.

SEAC minutes are provided to all Trustees each month in the Board agenda, in order that Trustees can be kept apprised of SEAC proceedings.

#### 1.4 Community Representative

The Community Representative shall be an individual who is involved in a community agency or organization that supports exceptional children, but which is not otherwise entitled to nominate a Representative.

The Board will appoint one (1) Community Representative SEAC member who is not otherwise:

- a Local Association Representative;
- a Trustee; or
- a member of another committee of the Board.

#### 1.5 Board Personnel

SEAC is supported by a number of Board personnel:

**Supervisory Officer**: SEAC meetings are attended by the Superintendent of Education responsible for Student Services.

**Senior Administrative Assistant**: The Senior Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent of Education, Student Services, provides administrative support including recording and distributing minutes of the meetings, providing notification of meetings, and other communications, and ensuring meeting rooms and refreshments are available.

**Student Services Staff**: Student Services staff include the Chief Psychologist and Manager of Speech and Language Pathologists, Manager of Clinical Services, Mental Health Leader, and a Family of Schools Coordinator or Special Education Consultant. Student Services Staff attend meetings to act as a resource to the Superintendent of Education and may at the Superintendent's request provide regular presentations to SEAC about special education programs and services.

#### ARTICLE 2 NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT

#### 2.1 Term

The term of SEAC members begins with their appointment by the Board and continues for the length of the Trustees' term of office, until such time as a new Board is organized and meets to appoint SEAC members for the coming term.

#### 2.2 Request for Nominations

The Board will invite Local Association nominations for appointment to SEAC in the Fall of each election year, by:

- Sending letters regarding the nomination process to all Local Associations;
- Providing community groups and organizations that support children who have special education needs with information about SEAC eligibility and the nomination process for a Community Representative;

- Posting information about SEAC and the nomination process for Local Association and Community Representatives on the Board's website;
- Advertising for SEAC nominations in local newspapers, and notifying school councils;
- Making the SEAC brochure available at school events, and to parents of students with an Individual Education Plan.

#### 2.3 Appointment

Each Local Association will forward its list of nominees to the Chair of the Board prior to the Board's last meeting in December following a municipal election.

Candidates for nomination as a Community Representative may apply to the Superintendent of Education – Student Services and the Chair of SEAC. The SEAC Chair and the Superintendent of Student Services shall interview applicants and shall select one candidate as nominee for appointment by the Board of Trustees, taking into consideration the criteria identified by the Board in consultation with SEAC.

Nominees for SEAC membership are considered for appointed by the newly elected Trustees at the last December meeting following a municipal election.

#### 2.4 Vacancies

SEAC members, including both Voting and Alternate, will be deemed to have vacated their seat upon either:

- a) conviction of an indictable offence;
- b) absence from three consecutive regular meetings of the committee without authorization by resolution entered in the minutes; or
- c) ceasing to be eligible for appointment, as outlined in Article 1 of this Procedure.

If a seat on SEAC becomes vacant, the Board will invite nominations according to the same process employed at the beginning of the term.

A vacant seat will be filled at the earliest practical time, but not later than the second meeting after the vacancy occurs.

#### ARTICLE 3 MEETINGS

#### 3.1 Election of the Chair and Vice-Chair

At the first meeting of SEAC's term, the committee will hold an election for the position of Chair and Vice-Chair.

The Chair, or in the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair, will preside at SEAC meetings. If at any meeting neither the Chair nor Vice-Chair are present, the voting members present may elect a Chair for that meeting from amongst themselves.

#### 3.2 Open Meetings

SEAC meetings shall be open to the public.

Attendees who have not been appointed by the Board as a SEAC member may observe SEAC proceedings but may not participate in committee discussion or debate unless explicitly invited to do so by the Chair.

#### 3.3 Meeting Times

SEAC shall meet at least ten (10) times in each school year. Unless otherwise indicated on the agenda, meetings are held from September to June, on the first Tuesday of the first full week of the month, starting at 7:30pm, in the Board room of the Catholic Education Centre.

#### 3.4 SEAC Agendas

The SEAC agenda is developed collaboratively by the Chair, Vice-Chair and Superintendent of Education, who shall periodically review the SEAC Annual Calendar (at Appendix 3) to ensure that appropriate information items are included on the agenda in a timely and proactive manner.

Additional agenda items may be identified by members, provided that a request to add an agenda item is received by the Chair at least five (5) days prior to the meeting for which it is intended.

The Board will provide members with the agenda at least three (3) business days in advance of the meetings, along with a request to confirm attendance.

#### 3.5 Cancellation

The Chair may cancel a meeting, for reasons such as inclement weather or an undue number of confirmed absences.

In the event of a cancellation, the Chair shall ensure that all SEAC members and affected staff are notified by email and shall use the Board website and social media to advise members of the public of the cancellation and a rescheduled date if applicable.

#### 3.6 Quorum

A quorum for SEAC requires the physical or electronic presence of a majority of the voting members.

In accordance with Reg. 464/97, SEAC must have a quorum before any decision which binds the committee can be made.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Chair may convene a meeting of SEAC without a quorum, for the purposes of receiving information and engaging in discussion.

Trustee and Local Association Alternate Representatives are only considered to be voting members when the voting member is absent and are otherwise not counted for purposes of determining quorum.

#### 3.7 Attendance at Meetings

Members can attend meetings either physically or remotely by telephonic or electronic means.

SEAC members are encouraged to attend as many meetings as possible, and in particular to attend at least three (3) meetings per school year in person, in order to foster a broad and balanced perspective during committee discussions.

If either a voting or alternate SEAC member has missed two or more consecutive meetings, for example, due to illness, family emergency, or employment, and anticipates a third consecutive absence but does not wish to vacate their appointment, the member may notify the Chair of SEAC in writing in advance to request that SEAC approval of the absence be noted in the minutes.

Where an attendance concern becomes apparent, for example where both the Voting and Alternate Representatives for a Local Association are consistently absent, the Chair may contact the SEAC Representatives and/or the Local Association to inquire about the intent and capacity of either the Representatives and/or the Local Association to continue their involvement with SEAC.

In the event that a position is vacated, the Chair shall send written confirmation of same to the vacating Representative and shall further notify the Local Association to request that the Association nominate another Representative for appointment by the Board.

#### 3.8 Accessibility

The Board will provide such accommodations as are necessary for all SEAC members to be able to participate in meetings, including but not limited to ensuring that meetings are held in accessible locations, and that specialized resources, including large print, electronic or Braille versions of documents, closed captioning or sign language interpreters, are available as required for members and attendees.

#### 3.9 Meeting Procedures

SEAC meetings are conducted according to the rules of procedures as outlined in the Board's By-Law, available on the Board website, subject to the provisions of Reg. 464/97 and these Terms of Reference.

#### 3.10 Maximum Length of Meeting

No meeting shall continue in session for more than three hours.

#### 3.11 Voting

All Voting members of SEAC may vote on a motion before the committee, including the Chair.

A motion fails if it does not receive the approval of a majority of members present in person or electronically, and eligible to vote.

#### 3.12 Meeting Norms

All members are expected to adhere to the following meeting norms:

- Arrive on time;
- Review the agenda before the meeting;
- Turn off all cell phones and pagers, or set to vibrate, for the duration of the meeting;
- Raise a hand to indicate an intention to speak;
- Speak only when recognized by the Chair;
- Listen to others;
- Be courteous; and
- Do not interrupt other speakers or dominate discussion.

#### Meeting Protocol:

- Meetings shall begin and end on time;
- The Chair shall open and close the meeting with a prayer;
- The Chair uses parliamentary procedure to proceed through the agenda;
- The Chair shall determine whether there is majority approval for agenda items requiring a vote;
- Presentations shall be limited to 10 20 minutes;
- During presentations and discussions, members shall:
  - Reserve judgment on ideas generated during brainstorming;
  - Discourage rehashing or repetition of previously stated positions or statements;
  - Where appropriate, breakout into teams for discussion of components or alternatives;
  - Identify relevant issues, and state all concerns related to the issue before the members;
  - Table or record "Parking Lot" issues or items for future discussion.

#### ARTICLE 4 RESPONSIBILITY OF MEMBERS

#### 4.1 Code of Conduct

The spirit and intent of SEAC is one of sharing, a positive attitude, trust and respect. It is vital that SEAC members work together to assist the Board to provide programs for all students with special education needs.

#### Each member is expected to:

- Represent the needs of all of the Board's pupils who have special education needs;
- Acquire and maintain a working knowledge of all of the special education programs and services provided by the Board;
- Express the concerns of students and Association's representing the needs of students, rather than the personal concerns of the member;
- Be prepared for all SEAC meetings, including reviewing all agenda materials, in order to be able to participate in discussions in an informed manner;
- keep apprised of Ministry and Board policies and guidelines relating to special education;
- advance recommendations relating to special education programs and services;
- be familiar with the Board's Student Well-Being and Achievement Plan and Board Improvement Plan, to the extent that these Plans affect the delivery of special education programs and services; and
- Respect the right to privacy of individual pupils by avoiding discussion of individual cases.

In the event that a conflict arises which cannot be resolved through committee discussion led by the Chair, the Superintendent of Student Services may at his or her discretion elect to involve an external facilitator, subject to Board approval of the expense, if required.

#### 4.2 Local Association Communication

Local Association members of SEAC shall endeavor to facilitate effective communications between their Local Association members and the Board.

To this end, SEAC members are encouraged to:

- share local Association updates and information at SEAC meetings;
- provide regular updates from their Local Association using the SEAC Association Report Form (see Appendix 2);
- keep informed of Local Association member needs, by speaking with individuals who
  take parent calls about issues of concern, and by seeking out information and input in
  relation to special education issues;
- report back to the members of the local Association or chapter with relevant; information from SEAC, such as past and future matters for discussion and/or approval at SEAC meetings;
- encourage Local Association members to attend SEAC meetings and other Board functions;
- upon request, provide the Local Association with a formal report on relevant SEAC proceedings to be included in the local Association's annual report;
- share Local Association annual reports with the SEAC; and
- suggest items of interest to the Local Association for inclusion on the SEAC agenda, including educational topics and motions.

#### 4.3 Recommendations to the Board

SEAC may upon receiving majority approval make recommendations to the Board in respect of matters affecting the establishment, development and delivery of special education programs and services for exceptional pupils of the Board, including:

- philosophy and goals;
- organizational structure;
- policies and procedures;
- program delivery systems;
- services and facilities;
- professional development;
- in-service opportunities for SEAC members.

#### 4.4 Review of Special Education Plan

The Board shall ensure that Special Education Advisory Committee is provided with an opportunity to participate in the Board's annual review of the Special Education Plan.

#### 4.5 Budget and Financial Statement Review

SEAC shall have the opportunity to participate in the Board's annual budget process, as that process relates to special education.

SEAC shall also have the opportunity to review the financial statements of the Board, as they relate to special education.

## APPENDIX 1 ONTARIO REGULATION 464/97 SPECIAL EDUCATION ADVISORY COMMITTEES

- 1. In this Regulation,
- "Local Association" means an Association or organization of parents that operates locally within the area of jurisdiction of a board and that is affiliated with an Association or organization that is not an Association or organization of professional educators but that is incorporated and operates throughout Ontario to further the interests and well-being of one or more groups of exceptional children or adults.
- 2. (1) Every district school board shall establish a special education advisory committee that shall consist of,
  - (a) subject to subsections (2) and (3), one representative from each of the local Associations that operates locally within the area of jurisdiction of the board, as nominated by the local Association and appointed by the board;
  - (b) one alternate for each representative appointed under clause (a), as nominated by the local Association and appointed by the board;
  - (c) such number of members from among the board's own members as is determined under subsection (4), as appointed by the board;
  - (d) where the number of members appointed under clause (c) is less than three, one alternate, as appointed by the board from among its own members, for each member appointed under clause (c);
  - (e) one or two persons to represent the interests of Indian pupils, as provided by section 4; and
  - (f) one or more additional members appointed under subsection (5).
- (2) The board shall not appoint more than 12 representatives under clause (1) (a).
- (3) Where there are more than 12 local Associations within the area of jurisdiction of the board, the board shall select the 12 local Associations that shall be represented.
- (4) The number to be appointed by the board under clause (1) (c) shall be the lesser of,
  - (a) three; and
  - (b) 25 per cent of the total number of members of the board, rounded down to the nearest whole number.
- (5) For the purposes of clause (1) (f), the board may appoint one or more additional members who are neither representatives of a local Association nor members of the board or another committee of the board.
- 3. (1) Every school authority, other than a board established under section 68 of the Act, shall establish a special education advisory committee that shall consist of,
  - (a) two representatives from the local Associations that operate locally within the area of jurisdiction of the board, as nominated by the local Associations and appointed by the board;
  - (b) one alternate for each representative appointed under clause (a), as nominated by the local Associations and appointed by the board;

- (c) one member from among the board's own members, as appointed by the board;
- (d) one alternate, as appointed by the board from among its own members, for the member appointed under clause (c); and
- (e) one or two persons to represent the interests of Indian pupils, as provided by section 4.
- (2) Where no local Association or Associations have been established, instead of the members and alternates required by clauses (1) (a) and (b), the board shall appoint two members and two alternates who are not members of the board.
- 4. (1) Where a board has one member appointed in accordance with a regulation made under section 188 of the Act, the special education advisory committee shall include one person appointed to represent the interests of Indian pupils.
- (2) Where a board has more than one member appointed in accordance with a regulation made under section 188 of the Act, the special education advisory committee shall include two persons appointed to represent the interests of Indian pupils.
- (3) One alternate shall be appointed for each person appointed in accordance with subsection (1) or (2).
- (4) The representatives and alternates shall be nominated by the councils of the bands with which the board has entered into agreements under section 188 of the Act.
  - (5) The board shall appoint the persons nominated under subsection (4).
- 5. (1) A person is not qualified to be nominated or appointed under section 2 or 3 to a special education advisory committee of a board unless the person is qualified to vote for members of that board and is resident in its area of jurisdiction.
  - (2) Subsection (1) does not apply in respect of persons appointed under section 4.
- (3) A person is not qualified to be nominated or appointed under section 2, 3 or 4 if the person is employed by the board.
- 6. Subject to section 7, each of the persons appointed to a special education advisory committee of a board shall hold office during the term of office of the members of the board and until a new board is organized.
- 7. (1) A member of a special education advisory committee vacates his or her seat if he or she,
  - (a) is convicted of an indictable offence;
  - (b) absents himself or herself without being authorized by resolution entered in the minutes from three consecutive regular meetings of the committee; or
  - (c) ceases to hold the qualifications to be appointed to the committee.
- (2) An alternate for a member of a special education advisory committee vacates his or her position if he or she,
  - (a) is convicted of an indictable offence;

- (b) absents himself or herself without being authorized by resolution entered in the minutes from three consecutive regular meetings of the committee in respect of which the alternate received a notice under subsection 9 (9); or
- (c) ceases to hold the qualifications to be appointed as an alternate.
- (3) Where a seat or position becomes vacant under this section, section 8 applies with respect to filling the vacancy.
- (4) Despite subsection (3), where a member of the committee or an alternate for a member of a committee is convicted of an indictable offence, the vacancy or position shall not be filled until the time for taking any appeal that may be taken from the conviction has elapsed, or until the final determination of any appeal so taken, and in the event of the quashing of the conviction the seat or position shall be deemed not to have been vacated.
- 8. (1) If a seat or position on a special education advisory committee becomes vacant, the board that appointed the person whose seat or position has become vacant shall appoint a qualified person to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term of the person whose seat or position has become vacant.
- (2) The nomination requirements of sections 2, 3 and 4 apply with respect to appointments under this section.
- (3) Where a seat of a member of the committee is vacant and has not yet been filled, the alternate for the member, if there is an alternate, shall act in the member's place for all purposes of this Regulation.
- 9. (1) A majority of the members of a special education advisory committee is a quorum, and a vote of a majority of the members present at a meeting is necessary to bind the committee.
- (2) Every member present at a meeting, or his or her alternate when attending the meeting in his or her place, is entitled to one vote.
- (3) The members of the committee shall, at their first meeting, elect one of their members as chair and one of their members as vice-chair.
- (4) The vice-chair shall assist the chair and shall act for the chair at meetings in his or her absence.
  - (5) The chair or, in the absence of the chair, the vice-chair, shall preside at meetings.
- (6) If at any meeting the chair and vice-chair are not present, the members present may elect a chair for that meeting.
- (7) The chair may vote with the other members of the committee and any motion on which there is an equality of votes is lost.
  - (8) The committee shall meet at least 10 times in each school year.

- (9) Where a member for whom an alternate has been appointed cannot attend a meeting of the committee, the member shall so notify the alternate.
- (10) Where an alternate receives a notice under subsection (9), he or she shall attend the meeting and act at the meeting in the member's place.
- 10. (1) The board shall make available to its special education advisory committee the personnel and facilities that the board considers necessary for the proper functioning of the committee, including the personnel and facilities that the board considers necessary to permit the use of electronic means for the holding of meetings of the committee in accordance with the regulations made under section 208.1 of the Act.
- (2) Within a reasonable time after a special education advisory committee is appointed, the board shall provide the members of the committee and their alternates with information and orientation respecting,
  - (a) the role of the committee and of the board in relation to special education; and
  - (b) Ministry and board policies relating to special education.
- 11. (1) A special education advisory committee of a board may make recommendations to the board in respect of any matter affecting the establishment, development and delivery of special education programs and services for exceptional pupils of the board.
- (2) Before making a decision on a recommendation of the committee, the board shall provide an opportunity for the committee to be heard before the board and before any other committee of the board to which the recommendation is referred.
- 12. (1) The board shall ensure that its special education advisory committee is provided with the opportunity to participate in the board's annual review, under Regulation 306 of the Revised Regulations of Ontario, 1990, of its special education plan.
- (2) The board shall ensure that its special education advisory committee is provided with the opportunity to participate in the board's annual budget process under section 231 of the Act, as that process relates to special education.
- (3) The board shall ensure that its special education advisory committee is provided with the opportunity to review the financial statements of the board, prepared under section 252 of the Act, as those statements relate to special education.
- 13. OMITTED (PROVIDES FOR COMING INTO FORCE OF PROVISIONS OF THIS REGULATION).



## APPENDIX 2 SEAC ASSOCIATION REPORT FORM



Name of Association:						
SEAC Member:						
Date of Meeting:						
	Association Activities					
Upcoming Meetings or Conferences:						
New Programs or Services:						
Other Information:						
Website:						

## APPENDIX 3 SEAC ANNUAL CALENDAR

The following are the topics, information items, presentation and activities that typically occur at monthly SEAC meetings.

Month	Annual Activities
September	<ul><li>Review Ministry Goals</li><li>Set SEAC goals for the year</li></ul>
October	Review Accessibility Plan
November	<ul> <li>Review of Special Ed component of Draft Board Improvement Plan</li> <li>Review of EQAO Data with record of students with IEPs</li> </ul>
December	Review of Special Education Data including IEPs
January	Election of Chair and Vice Chair
February	Review of Director's Annual Report
March	
April	Review of Special Education Budget
May	Review of Special Education Plan
June	<ul> <li>Approval of Special Education Plan</li> <li>Review of year</li> <li>Application for Pro Grant</li> </ul>